

---

## Proposed Rules

C. The full evidentiary hearing shall be held at a time and place convenient and accessible to the operator licensed blind vendor requesting a fair full evidentiary hearing. A full evidentiary hearing held during regular state licensing agency working hours and located at the state licensing agency central office ~~with must~~ be deemed among the convenient times and places. Upon receipt of the request, the state licensing agency shall immediately request a hearing date from the state Office of Administrative Hearings, whose designee shall serve as ~~an impartial presiding officer~~ the administrative law judge, and then notify the operator licensed blind vendor of the time and place for the full evidentiary hearing. The operator licensed blind vendor must be provided sufficient preparation time before the full evidentiary hearing. The operator licensed blind vendor shall be provided a copy of the hearing procedures and rules.

D. The operator licensed blind vendor has the right to be represented by counsel, and may present witnesses and cross-examine adverse witnesses.

E. A transcript of the proceeding must be available to the operator licensed blind vendor.

F. After receipt of the report of the administrative law judge, the director of the state licensing agency shall issue a final written decision within 15 calendar days.

Subp. 4. Arbitration panel. If ~~an operator~~ the licensed blind vendor is dissatisfied with the decision rendered after a full evidentiary hearing, the operator licensed blind vendor may request that an arbitration panel be convened by filing a complaint with the secretary of the Department of Education, as authorized by ~~federal regulations at~~ Code of Federal Regulations, title 34, section 395.13 ~~(+98+)~~.

### 3321.1300 ACCESS TO PROGRAM AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION.

Each operator licensed blind vendor shall be provided access to all program and financial data of the state licensing agency relevant to the operation of the ~~vending stand business enterprises~~ program, including quarterly and annual financial reports, provided that the disclosure does not violate applicable federal or state laws pertaining to the disclosure of confidential information. Insofar as is practicable, the data shall be made available in braille ~~or recorded tape~~, audio, or electronic format. At the request of ~~an operator~~ a licensed blind vendor, the state licensing agency ~~with must~~ arrange a convenient time to assist in the interpretation of the data. The operator management committee organized under part 3321.1100 shall be provided all individual and program data necessary to carry out its purpose and function.

REPEALER. Minnesota Rules, parts 3321.0700, subpart 2; 3321.0900, subpart 2; and 3321.1400, are repealed.

## Minnesota Pollution Control Agency

### Adopted Exempt Permanent Rule Relating to Local Standards for Subsurface Sewage Treatment Systems

#### 7082.0050 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS FOR LOCAL ORDINANCES.

*[For text of subps 1 to 4, see M.R.]*

Subp. 5. Requirements for alternative local standards. Counties are authorized to adopt and enforce by ordinance alternative local standards for existing or new construction or replacement of SSTs as part of a conventional program. The alternative local standards must protect public health and the environment as stipulated in Minnesota Statutes, section 115.55, subdivision 7, paragraphs (a) and (b), and must comply with items A to F H.

A. Except as provided in items G and H, alternative local standards must not apply to systems in shoreland areas or wellhead protection areas or systems serving food, beverage, or lodging establishments.

*[For text of items B to F, see M.R.]*

G. A county may adopt alternative local standards for new or replacement residential systems with flow of 2,500 gallons per day or less for systems in shoreland areas regulated under Minnesota Statutes, sections 103F.201 to 103F.221, if the alternative standards

## Proposed Rules

are no less stringent than provisions of chapter 7080 that went into effect on April 3, 2006.

H. A county may adopt alternative local standards for new or replacement residential systems with flow of 2,500 gallons per day or less for systems used in connection with food, beverage, and lodging establishments regulated under Minnesota Statutes, chapter 157, if the alternative standards are no less stringent than provisions of chapter 7080 that went into effect on April 3, 2006, except that the waste strength must meet the standards established in part 7080.2150, subpart 3, item K. If additional treatment of waste is needed to meet the standard in part 7080.2150, subpart 3, item K, the treatment must be in accordance with part 7080.2150, subpart 3, item A.

## Official Notices

Pursuant to *Minnesota Statutes* §§ 14.101, an agency must first solicit comments from the public on the subject matter of a possible rulemaking proposal under active consideration within the agency by publishing a notice in the *State Register* at least 60 days before publication of a notice to adopt or a notice of hearing, and within 60 days of the effective date of any new statutory grant of required rulemaking.

The *State Register* also publishes other official notices of state agencies and non-state agencies, including notices of meetings and matters of public interest.

## Subscribers' Services

Only subscribers can view all Official Notices, including the current volume as it grows, are indexed. Open the *State Register* and click on the Bookmarks icon in the upper left corner. You will see the growing index, and have fast access to all the online indices to the *State Register*. You also receive a summarized "Contracts & Grants" section showing bids and grants still open.

- E-mailed to you on Friday
- Indexes to Vol. 27 - Vol. 33
- All Contracts & Grants Open for Bid
- Access to *State Register* Archives
- LINKS
- WORD SEARCH Capability

Subscribe today. Subscriptions cost \$180 a year (an \$80 savings). You will receive the *State Register* via e-mail at the end-of-day on Friday, instead of waiting for the non-subscriber's issue released on Monday. Contact Loretta J. Diaz, our subscriptions manager, at phone: (651) 297-8777, or fax: (651) 297-8260, or e-mail: [loretta.diaz@state.mn.us](mailto:loretta.diaz@state.mn.us)

## Minnesota Department of Commerce

### Request for Comments on Possible Amendment to Rules Governing the Valuation of Life Insurance, *Minnesota Rules*, Chapter 2747

**Subject of Rules.** The Minnesota Department of Commerce requests comments on the possible amendment to rules governing the valuation of life insurance. The Department is considering proposed rule changes based on amendments to a model regulation adopted by the National Association of Insurance Commissioners ("NAIC") as a result of the 2008 financial crisis. The proposed modification to the rules is intended to address outdated valuation mortality resulting in redundant reserves.

**Persons Affected.** The amendments to the rules would likely affect the following persons: life insurance companies, life insurance company actuaries, and fraternal benefit societies.

**Statutory Authority.** Minnesota Statutes, sections 61A.25 and 45.023 authorize the Commissioner of Commerce to adopt rules to carry out the legislative intent of establishing minimum standards of valuation of life insurance policies, annuities, and pure endowment contracts.

**Public Comment.** Interested persons or groups may submit comments or information on these possible rules in writing until further

The Minnesota



# State Register

## PRINTING ORDER

### Plant Management Division

660 Olive St. Paul, MN 55155

Editorial Office: 651-297-7963 FAX 651-297-8260

Toll-free Nationwide: 1-800-657-3757

Circulation Manager: 651-297-8777

TTY: Metro Area 651-282-5077 Nationwide 1-800-657-3706

See the **State Register** at: <http://www.minnesotasbookstore.com>

### INSTRUCTIONS:

1. Complete all applicable blocks, including your department/ division, billing address, and name and phone of contact person.
2. Submittal instructions and deadline schedule available from editor, or see inside front cover of the **State Register**, or web site: <http://www.minnesotasbookstore.com> (click on **State Register** in left hand menu listing. A green menu board will appear; click on Submission Guidelines).
3. Submit **ONE COPY ELECTRONICALLY** (disk or E-mail in Microsoft Word) of everything to be published and send to:  
[robin.panlener@state.mn.us](mailto:robin.panlener@state.mn.us) or [john.mikes@state.mn.us](mailto:john.mikes@state.mn.us)
4. **CONTRACTS** for Professional, Technical and Consulting Services from **State agencies** must include a completed "Certification/Internal Contract Negotiation" form.
5. **State agencies** must have your agency's **State Register "Liaison Officer"** sign this form. Call the State Register Office to obtain more detailed instructions, and to add or change "Liaison Officers." To add liaison officers, send letter to State Register Office noting appointment and have new Liaison Officer sign the letter.
6. Retain a copy of this form for your records.

### CHECK ALL THAT APPLY:

- ☒ **REQUEST FOR PUBLICATION** (Attach copy of text to be printed, typed double-spaced, with text on a 3.5" disk listing format).  
Desired Date(s) of Publication: October 1, 2012
- ☐ **REQUEST FOR INDIVIDUAL AGENCY COPY(IES):**  
Number of Copies: \_\_\_\_\_ Date(s) of Issue: \_\_\_\_\_
- ☐ **REQUEST FOR LARGE QUANTITY OVERRUNS** (Request must be made prior to printing)  
Number of Copies: \_\_\_\_\_ Date(s) of Issue: \_\_\_\_\_
- ☐ **REQUEST FOR "AFFIDAVIT OF PUBLICATION: "(Includes one copy of issue and Notarized "Affidavit of Publication")**  
Number of Copies: \_\_\_\_\_ Date(s) of Issue: \_\_\_\_\_
- ☐ **REQUEST FOR ANNUAL SUBSCRIPTION**

### SHIP AGENCY INDIVIDUAL OR OVERRUN COPIES TO:

Name
Carol Nankivel
Department/Division
Pollution Control Agency
Address
520 Lafayette Road
City/State/Zip
St. Paul, Mn. 55155
Telephone
651/757-2597

Authorized Dept. State Register Liaison Officer  
(Phone - Date - Signature)

*[Signature]* 9/10/2012

Title/Headline of Item to be Published:

Notice of Adoption of Amendments to Subsurface Sewage Treatment System Rules, Mn. R. ch. 7082

### NOTES:

Department:	Division:
Pollution Control	Municipal
Billing Address:	
Customer Number:	Amount: <u>\$50.00</u>
<b>Order Processing Information:</b>	
Agency Purchase Order #:	
<b>AGPS:</b>	
SWIFT Vendor #:	G020000000, Address 11
Category #:	82101800
Account #:	411104
<b>GFS:</b>	
FUND:	840
AGENCY:	G02
ORG:	5204
PPR:	220
REV:	2564